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MEMORANDUM 

TO:        Bob Klein, Chair, and Members of the  
  Alcoholic Beverage Control Board  

 

DATE:  January 23, 2018 

FROM: Erika McConnell, Director 
 

RE:  612 King Mountain Lodge  

 
 
Requested Actions: Approval of fourth waiver of operation application; 

approval of license renewal application; and 
approval of license ownership transfer application 

 
Statutory and AS 04.06.090(b): “The board shall review all applications for licenses  
Regulatory Authority: made under this title and may order the director to issue, renew, 

revoke, transfer, or suspend licenses and permits authorized under this 
title.” 

 
 3 AAC 304.170(b): “A licensee may apply to the board, requesting that 

the board waive the operating requirement of AS 04.11.330(a)(3)... 
Under AS 04.11.330(a)(3), the board will determine whether, through 
no fault of the licensee or because the premises are under construction, 
the licensed premises could not be operated for the required time 
during the preceding calendar year.” 

 
Staff Recommendation: Deny the fourth waiver of operation, renewal, and ownership transfer 

applications  
 
Background:  At its December 5, 2016, meeting, the Board approved a third waiver of operation 
of this beverage dispensary license for the 2016 calendar year with the stipulation that a fourth 
waiver will not be granted. The explanation of circumstances provided by King Mountain Lodge, 
LLC (owned by Michael Hedrick and Darlene Whaley) on the approved application was, “License 
under contract to be sold. We were unable to operate for our 30 days due to the fact that the 
building and real property are sold.” 
 
An application to transfer the ownership of this license from King Mountain Lodge, LLC, to James 
D. Psenak and Juhree D. Psenak was received by AMCO staff on October 2, 2017. The licensing 
examiner who processed the application requested that a complete renewal application be submitted 
by King Mountain Lodge, LLC, as required by 3 AAC 304.175(e). Correspondence regarding 
operation of the license ensued between licensing staff, the transferee, and lawyers and brokers 



612 King Mountain Lodge 
ABC Board January 23, 2018 
Page 2 
 
involved in the license transfer. It was revealed that the license was not operated during the 2017 
calendar year because the Psenaks have owned the property and building since late June of 2016. 
 
In response to questions asked by the licensing team, King Mountain Lodge, LLC, submitted 
documentation which included a [now void] option to purchase the beverage dispensary liquor 
license, dated June 6, 2016 (pages 30-37 of this tab), which we now understand is the contract that 
was being referenced in the 2016 third waiver application. The contract provided the Psenaks the 
option to purchase the license on or before June 1, 2017, if King Mountain Lodge, LLC, was unable 
to find another buyer in the interim. 
 
According to both parties, no other interested purchasers presented themselves during that time, 
and by June 1, 2017, the terms of the original contract were no longer amenable to the Psenaks. A 
new agreement to purchase the beverage dispensary license was executed on August 14, 2017 (pages 
39-45 of this tab).   
 
On December 14, 2017, Mr. Psenak came into the office and informed licensing staff that he 
purchased the property in 2016 with the intent of using it for purposes other than operating the 
lodge (and liquor license). Mr. Psenak stated that there was substantial damage done to the lodge 
(the causes of which are not agreed upon by both parties), and that although he is listed as a 
transferee of the license, he plans to find a third-party purchaser for the license rather than operating 
it at its current location. 
 
I recommend that the Board deny the application for the fourth waiver of operation for this license, 
as well as the renewal and ownership transfer applications, as the latter two are contingent upon the 
former (3 AAC 304.170(g)). This recommendation is based upon the following:  

1) The Board’s action to approve the 2016 third waiver of operation with the stipulation that a 
fourth would not be issued; 

2) King Mountain Lodge, LLC, has not leased or owned the property for which the license is 
issued since June of 2016, and 3 AAC 304.170(e) states that if the premises identified on an 
applicant’s license are not leased or owned by the licensee, the third or subsequent 
application [for waiver of operation] will, in the board’s discretion, be denied; and 

3) A transferee of this license has indicated that he plans to try to sell this license rather than 
operate it. 

 
 
Attachments: Page from the approved December 5, 2016, meeting minutes 
 Approved third waiver application from December 5, 2016, meeting 
 Correspondence submitted by King Mountain Lodge, LLC 
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5357 Sourdough Mining Company: Sourdough Mining Co., an AK Restaurant, Inc. 
5200 Juneau Street; Anchorage 
License: Restaurant / Eating Place 
 

 First waiver application. 
 

1566 Steve’s Sports Bar & Grill: SLF International, Inc. 
No Premises; Anchorage 
License: Beverage Dispensary 
 

 Second waiver application. 
 
 
 THIRD WAIVERS     
 

A. 1198 Brown Jug: Liquor Stores USA North, Inc. 12:11:59 PM TAB 15 
No Premises; Anchorage 
License Type: Package Store 
 
Dick Rosston, attorney for Liquor Stores USA North, identifies himself for the record and provides 
testimony that the licensee has been trying very hard to find a site for the license over the past 
three years. 
 
Ellen Ganley motions to approve the third waiver with the understanding that a fourth waiver will 
not be available. 
Bobby Evans seconds the motion. 
Motion carries unanimously. 
 
 

B. 534 Houston Lodge: Burkeshore Marina Enterprises, LLC 12:17:35 PM TAB 16 
No Premises; Houston 
License Type: Package Store 
 
Nick Gittlein, Burkeshore Marina, identifies himself for the record. 
Sarah Oates reminds the board that the transfer of this license to Three Bears was approved with 
delegation a few minutes ago. 
 
Bobby Evans motions to approve the third waiver. 
Ellen Ganley seconds the motion. 
Motion carries unanimously. 
 
 

C. 612 King Mountain Lodge: King Mountain Lodge, LLC 12:19:22 PM TAB 17 
34097 N Glenn Highway; Mat-Su Borough 
License Type: Beverage Dispensary 
 
Ellen Ganley motions to approve the waiver with the stipulation that a fourth waiver will not be 
granted. 
Bobby Evans seconds the motion. 
Motion carries unanimously. 
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